Network Worlding Group Request for Comments:]]

Implementation of the HOST - HOST

Software Procedures in CORDO

G. Deloche, UCLA 1 August 1969

Crocker

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Cha	oter		Page
1.	Intro	oduction	3
2;	HOST	-HOST Procedures	. 4
	2.1	Generalities	. 4
	2.2	Connections and Links	5
•	·	2.2.1 Definitions	5
		2.2.2 Connection types	. 6
	2.3	Message Structure	9
	2.4	User Transactions	12
		2.4.1 List of transactions	12
		2.4.2 HOST-HOST protocol and control messages	<u>]</u> 4
3.	Imple	ementation in GORDO	19
•	3.1	Introduction to GORDO	19
		3.1.1 GORDO file system	19
		3.1.2 GORDO process	[.] 19
	3.2	Software Organization Overview • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	2 2
	3.3	Software Description	24
	•	3.3.1 Data structures	24
		3.3.1.1 Allocation tables • • • • • • • • • •	24
		3.3.1. 2 Buffer pages • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	20
		3.3.2 Programs	36
		3.3.2.1 Handler	36
•		3.3.2.2 Network	37

	•
	•
	Page
3.4 Software Procedures	. 40
3.4.1 Description of some typical sequences · · ·	. 40
Appendix A: Flowcharts	. <u></u> дł
	· · ·
	·
	• •
	• •
	• . •
2	

1. INTRODUCTION

This technical note concentrates upon (1) the HOST-HOST procedures and (2) the implementation of the corresponding programs in GORDO (Operating System of the UCLA HOST).

The first section is closely related to the BBN reports No. 1822 and 1763^[1] and specifies the HOST functions for exchanging messages. It mostly deals with links and connections, message structure, transactions, and control messages.

The second section is software oriented; it explains how the HOST functions are implemented and integrated into GORDO. It is involved with data structures, programs, buffers, interrupt processing, etc.

[1] Parts of this section are taken from or referred to those reports.

2. HOST-HOST PROCEDURES

2.1 Generalities

The basic idea is that several users, at a given HOSF, should simultaneously be able to utilize the network by time-sharing its physical facilites.

This implies that within each HOST operating system, there must exist a special program that multiplexes outgoing messages from the users into the network and distributes incoming messages to the appropriate users. We will call this special program the Network program. Links and Connections (See figure 1)

2.2.1 Definitions

2.2

It is convenient to consider the Network as a black box - a system whose behavior is known but whose mechanisms are not - for communicating messages between remote users rather than between pairs of HOST computers.

(a) Logical connections

We define a logical connection as being a communication path linking two users at remote HOST.

With that concept, a user (user program) in a HOST computer can (1) establish several logical connections to any remote HOST users, and (2) send or receive messages over those connections.

Connections appear to users as full duplex.

One of the purposes of the Network program is to serve the users in establishing, identifying, and maintaining these connections.

(b) Logical links

Each logical connection is made of a pair of directional links: one for transmitting, the other for receiving.

Those links, called logical links, are established by the Network programs and used by them.

Note here that users are only interested in connections and are completely unaware of links. Relationships between links and connections are carried out by the Network program. One of the advantages to define a connection as a pair of directional links is that a HOST will have the capability to loop himself through its IMP (it opens a connection to himself). This feature can be useful for debugging purposes.

Further on through this paper we will not use any more the attribute logical when referring either to links or connections.

2.2.2 Connection types

In order to reach a high flexibility in utilizing the Network there is advantage to classify the connections.

Three types of connections are distinguished: (a) control connection, (b) primary connection, and (c) auxiliary connection.

(a) Control connection

This connection has a special status and is unique between a pair of HOST_s , e.g., if the Network includes x HOST_s , there are at most x control connections issued from one HOST.

This connection is used by remote Network programs for passing control messages back and forth. Control messages are basic to the establishment/deletion of standard connections. (See 2.4.2)

Note here that this control connection is the only connection which is ignored by the HOST users.

Let us describe now the standard connections.

(b) Primary connection

These connections connect remote users.

A primary connection:

* Is unique between a pair of users and is the first to be

established.

Is "teletype-like", i.e.:

- ASCII characters are transmitted;

- Echos are generated by the remote HOST;

- The receiving HOST_{s} scan for break characters;

- The transmission rate is slow (less than 20 characters/sec).

Is mainly used for transmitting control commands, e.g., for log-in into a remote HOST operating system.

(c) Auxiliary connection

These connections also connect remote users:

An auxiliary connection:

- * Is opened in parallel to a primary connection and is not
 - unique, i.e., several auxiliary connections can be established between users.

* Is used for transmitting large volumes of data (file oriented).

* Is used either for binary or character tranmission.



2.3 Message Structure

The HOST communicate with each other via messages. A message may vary in length up to 8095 bits (See down below the structure). Larger transmission must therefore be broken up by HOST users into a sequence of such messages.

A message structure is identified on figure 2.

It includes the following:

- A leader (32 bits): Message type, Source/Destination HOST,
 link number. (See BBN report No. 1822, pp 13, 17)
- (2) A marking (32 bits when sent by the Sigma 7) for starting a message text on a word boundary. (See BBN report No. 1822, pp. 17, 19)
- (3) 'The message text (Max: 8015 bits for the Signa 7). It mostly consists of user's text. However, it may represent information for use by the Network programs. (Control messages, see 2.4.2)
- (4) A checksum (16 bits). Its purpose is to check, at the HOST level, the right transmission of a message. (Changes in bit pattern or packet transposition; packets are defined in BEN report No. 1763, p. 13) See down below for checksum calculation.
 (5) A padding for solving word length mismatch problems. (See BEN report No. 1822, p. 17, 19.). As far as software is concerned, padding is only involved at message reception for delineating message ends. (At transmission the hardware takes care of the padding.)

Remark:

4.

Checksum calculation:

The last 16 bits of every message sent by a HOST is a checksum. This checksum is computed on the whole message including any marking, but excluding the 32 bit leader and any padding. To compute the checksum:

- Consider the message to be padded with zeroes to a length of 8640 bits.
 - 2. Section the 8640 bits into six 1440-bit segments, S_0 , S_1 ... S_5 .
 - 3. Section each 1440-bit segment S into 90 16-bit elements,

 $t_0, t_1 \dots t_{89}$. Define a function \oplus , which takes two 16-bit elements as

inputs and outputs a 16-bit element. This function is defined by

 $t_m \oplus t_n = t_m \oplus t_n$, if $t_m + t_n < 2^{16}$

- $t_m \oplus t_n = t_m \oplus t_n 2^{16} + 1$, if $t_m + t_n \ge 2^{16}$
- 5. For each 1440-bit segment S_i compute $C_i = K(S_i)$, where

 $K(S) = t_0 \oplus t_1 \oplus \dots t_{89}$

- 6. Compute $C = C_0 \oplus C_1 \oplus C_2 \oplus C_2 \oplus C_2 \oplus C_2 \oplus C_2 \cdots \oplus C_5$
 - (Notice that $C_1 \bigoplus C_1$ is just C_1 rotated left one bit)

The number C is the checksum. The reason the C_i are rotated by i bits is to detect packet transposition.



2.4 User Transactions

From what has been discussed until here, the Network appears to a user as a bunch of connections. Let us now explain how one can make use of these connections.

First, we are going to describe the set of transactions that a user should be able to access for utilizing the connection facilities.

Then, we are going to explain the role of the Network program for the execution of these transactions. This will cover a HOST-HOST protocol in which control messages are exchanged between network programs.

For explanation purposes those transactions are represented, at the user level, in the form of subroutine calls and parameters. However, this does not imply at all that the implementation will closely follow this pattern. (We are more involved here with the description than the implementation aspect, see chapter 3.)

2.4.1 List of transactions

Listed below are the descriptions of subroutines that could be at user's disposal for creating/breaking connections and transmitting/receiving data over them. This set of subroutines can be considered as a kind of interface between the user level and the network program level.

12

(a) Open primary connection:

OPENPRIM (CONNECTID, HOSTID, BUFFADDR, [OFT]) **CONNECTID:** Connection identification # HOSTID: Remote HOST identification #

BUFFADDR: Buffer address for incoming messages.

OPT: Options such as message required after successful connection establishment, "full echo" (each message is transmitted back by the remote HOST for checking purpose), etc.

Remark: [] means optional

(b) Open auxiliary connection

OPENAUX (CONNECTID, BUFFADDR, N, [OPT])

CONNECTID: Connection identification #, i.e., the identification of the corresponding primary connection (First a user has to open a primary connection).

BUFFADDR: Same meaning as above.

N: Number of auxiliary connections that should be opend.

OPT: Same meaning as above.

(c) Transmission over connection

TRANSM (CONNECTID, NO, BUFFADDR, N, [OPT])

CONNECTID: Connection identification #

NO: Connection #. The primary connection is always referred to as being NO = 0. An auxiliary connection number corresponds to the order in which it has been established. (The first auxiliary opened is referred to by NO = 1, the second by NO = 2, etc.)

BUFFADDR: Buffer address of the message to be transmitted. N: Message size (byte number) OPT: Options such as data type (characters vs. vinary), trace bit, etc.

(d) Close connection

CLOSE (CONNECTID, [N], [NO])

CONNECTID: Connection indentification #.

- N: Number of connections to be closed. If omitted all connections in use by the user, included the primary link, are closed.
- NO: In case of N different from zero this number indicates the auxiliary connection # to be closed.

2.4.2 HOST-HOST protocol and control messages

The HOST-HOST protocol is carried out by the Network programs. It mainly involves the execution of the previous transactions (initiated by users) and covers a HOST-HOST dialogue.

This dialogue fulfills control procedures for opening or breaking connections and consists in exchanging control messages over the control link. A control message has a structure identical to that of a regular message; it only differs from it by the text which is for use by Network programs instead of users.

Let us insist that this control procedure is completely unrelated to transmission control procedures implemented in the IMP computers. We are here at the HOST level (Network programs), and therefore control messages, that are going to be described below, are transmitted over the IMP_s like regular messages.

Consider now the previous transactions and describe for each of them which messages are exchanged over which links. Each case will be explained by means of trivial examples.

We suppose that a HOST(x) user wants to talk to a remote HOST(y) program called URSA.

(a) Open a primary connection: (OPEMPRIM)

The HOST (x)'s Network program, waken up (See 3.3) by a use for opening a primary connection, starts a dialogue with the HOST (y)'s Network program.

(i) HOST(x) sends the following control message:

ENQ: Enquiry for connection establishment (one ASCII character)
PRIN: Connection type: primary (one special character)
0 1 2 : Outgoing link #. It is a decimal number (3 ASCII characters),

e.g., link #12.

This link # has been determined by the HOST(x) Network program (See implementation: 3.3)

(ii). HOST(y) acknowledges by sending back the following control

message:

HOST(x) $\underbrace{\begin{array}{c} \text{Control link} \\ \text{ACK ENQ PRIM 0 1 2 0 1 5} \end{array}}_{\text{HOST(y)}$

ACK: Positive acknowledgment (one ASCII character) ENQ PRIM 0 1 2 : Same meaning as above. This part of the message is returned for checking purposes.

015: Incoming link #. It follows the same pattern as the outgoing link #. This link # has been determined by the HOST(y) Network

program.

Now the connection is established; it will use links #12 and 15 for exchanging user messages. The connection is said to be in a pre-log-in state, i.e., the remote HOST(y) expects its standard log-in procedures.

(b) Transmission over primary connection: (TRANSM)

By means of TRANSM subroutines referring to the primary connection, the HOST(x) user is able to sign-in into the HOST(y) operating system and then to call for the URSA program (HOST(y) user program).

The Network programs at both ends will use the link #12 and #15 for passing along messages. These messages are standard messages whose contents serve for log in sequence.

A trivial example could be:

Prim. Link #12	HOST(y)	
! SIGN-IN:XX		
Prim. Link #15	HOST(y)	
I I R E A D Y		
Prim. Link #12	HOST(y)	
IURSA		
	! S I G N - I N : X X Prim. Link #15 ! ! R E A D Y Prim. Link #12	

(c) Open an auxiliary connection: (OPENAUXI)

In a very similar manner as (a) an auxiliary connection is established between HOST(x) and HOST(y). For so doing control messages are exchanged over the control link.



Now the auxiliary connection is established, it will use links #25 and 21 for exchanging standard messages.

(d) Transmission over auxiliary connection: (TRANSM)

By means of TRANSM subroutines referring to the auxiliary connection, the users at both ends can exchange data:

$$HOST(x) \xrightarrow{Aux. Link #25} HOST(y)$$

$$HOST(x) \xrightarrow{Aux. Link #21} HOST(y)$$

$$to x \dots x$$

$$to x$$

$$to x$$

(e) Close connections: (CLOSE)

This is carried out in a similar manner as (a). The user calls a CLOSE subroutine and then the Network programs at both ends exchange control messages.

HOST(x) $\begin{array}{c} Control Link \\ EOT & 0 & 0 & 1 & 0 & 1 & 2 \end{array}$ HOST(y) EOT: End of transmission (one ASCII character) 0 0 1 : No. of connections to be closed (3 decimal ASCII characters) 0 1 2 : Outgoing link # to be closed.

Then HOST(y) acknowledges back as in (a).

HOST(x)
$$\begin{array}{c} \hline Control Link \\ ACK EOT 0 0 1 0 1 2 0 1 5 \end{array}$$
 HOST(y)

Remark 1 - In (a), (c), and (e) HOST(y) may answer back a message including a negative acknowledgment character NAK instead of ACK. This for many various reasons such as: wrong sequence, connection already opened, and so forth. The message could be NAK IND, where IND is an alphanumerical character indicating, in a coded form, why the previous block has been refused. Upon receiving back such acknowledgments HOST(x) will repeat its message until HOST(y)accepts it. An emergency procedure will take place if too many successive "NAK messages" occur.

Remark 2 - On each of the above illustrations (arrows) only the message text is represented. In fact, complete messages (with leader, marking, padding...) are exchanged over these links.

3. IMPLEMENTATION IN GORDO

3.1 Introduction to GORDO

GORDO is a time-sharing system implemented on SDS Sigma 7. We outline below some of the characteristics relevant to our paper.

3.1.1 GORDO file system

The file system is page oriented. It is composed of files and directories. A file consists of a heading and a number of pages which compose the body of the file. A directory consists of a number of entries that point to either files or other directories.

3.1.2 GORDO process

- * A process is a program (procedures and data) plus its logical environment. In other words a process is a program which is known and controlled by the GORDO scheduler.
 - A user (a job) may have several processes as different as compiler, loader, editor, application program, etc. A process is created through a system call (FORK).
- * The space a process can refer to is the Virtual Space of 128k word length. A part (8k) of it is reserved for the operating system, the other part (120k) is directly accessed by the user. This later may fill or modify its part of the virtual space upon 'coupling'. (See below:

service calls) pages taken from different files. Figure 3 illustrates this coupling.

- A process can request for services by means of system calls. The system calls relevant to our paper are:
 - WAKE for awaking (set active) a sleeping process

X

- SLEEP for putting asleep another process (or itself)
- COUPLE for coupling a page from the file space to the virtual space.
- A process ordinarily runs in slave mode. However if it is set up as an I/O process it can access privileged instructions.
- * Processes can share data through files attached to "mail box" directories.

Remark: Through this note the words process and program are used interchangeably.



- 3.2 Software Organization Overview

Figure 4 illustrates the overall organization.

The system is based upon two main programs: the "<u>Network</u>" and the "Handler".

The Handler is an I/O interrupt routine closely related to the IMP-HOST hardware interface. It serves the Network process in transmitting and receiving network messages.

The Network process carries out most of the work.

Its main function is to satisfy the users' requests for opening/ closing connections and transmitting/receiving network messages. For so doing.

- * it establishes, identifies and breaks the links upon using the allocation tables (HOST, CONNECT, INPUT LINK; see 3.3.1.1)
- * it is aware of the presence of new users upon exploring the Network
 mail box directory;
- * it communicates with active users by means of shared pages through which messages and requests are exchanged (connection shared pages):
- * it formats incoming/outgoing messages in a working page. This working page has an extension (emergency ring);
- * it communicates with the Handler by means of a shared page (I/O communication page) which contains the I/O communication buffers.



3.3 Software Description

3.3.1 Data Structures

3.3.1.1 Allocation tables: HOST, CONNECP, INPUT LINK

The Network program establishes, identifies, and breaks links and connections upon using 3 tables:

A table sorted by remote HOSI' #.

A table sorted by connection #

A table sorted by input link #.

(a) HOST table (See figure 5)

It is a bit table indicating the free outgoing links. It has the following characteristics:

* Location: Disc resident

* Coupling: Coupled to the Network process virtual space.

* Size: As many slots as remote HOST.

* Slot structure: As many bits as possible outgoing links to a remote HOSF, i.e., 256.

* Access: Indexing. East slot is accessed through a remote HOST #.
* Specific feature: Throughout the whole table no more than 64

bits can be turned on. This figure corresponds to the maximum number of outgoing links that can be activated at one time (No matter what is the number of remote HOST_). (b) COMMECT table

This table keeps track of all the connections' environment. It has the following characteristics:

* Location: Disc resident

Coupling: Coupled to the Network process virtual space

* Size: As many slots as connections in use.

* Slot structure: See figure 6. Each slot is 2 word length

* Access: Indexing. Each slot is accessed through a connection #. See 3.4 the way it is handled.

* Specific feature 1: The slot structure corresponding to a

primary connection is not identical to that of an auxiliary connection (See figure 7). This because user identifications and requests are done through primary shared pages.

* Specific feature 2:

Specific feature 3: '

This table is handled in parallel with the connection pages (See 3.3.2 (b))

This table is mainly used for transmitting messages. (For each connection it contains the outgoing link # and remote HOST #, i.e., all the information required for transmitting a message.)

(c) INPUI LINK table

This table keeps track of all the incoming (input) links and so is closely related to the CONFECT table.



Link free/ Kost.

HORT MALL

Figure 5 26 · · · ·

Avoiliary Connection Out < 1 word (32 !!!) 1 Word (32 Sits) L KW (F.6 : Remote Kost # 2 Outgoing link fi Incoming link of s Tore & (X'or's Prim/ Prime X 02 = RENA MENT X'oy' - Connection established) Connection # of the associated primary converting (Primary Constition Slot Isamire to Tomatical to analiaby link > auxiliary lin (at about (222 a. 24) -> Muniter of Chaining pristic la <----a told' contouring Counter and V The wave id. (Jos ?) provers ?) war by the w CONNECT table : Stat structure (Difference individual primary and preliberry correction Filme C



Reminik. During a kink stablishment the outgoing lank of its momentarily stored instead of the incoming with of

INROTILINK table : Slot structure

Figure 7

23 .

It has the following characteristics:

* Location: Disc resident.

* Coupling: Coupled to the Network process virtual space

* Size: As many slots as incoming links, i.e., as connections

* Slot structure: See figure 7. Each slot is 1 word length

* Access: Hashing. The hashed key value is mainly based upon the incoming link # and the remote HOST #.

Specific feature 1: This table is also used for momentarily memorizing the connection number while establishing the next connection. See 3.4 the way it is handled.

Specific feature 2: This table is primarily used upon receiving messages. (For each incoming link it contains the corresponding connection #, i.e., indirectly the user identification to which the message should be passed along)

3.3.1.2 Buffer pages

All the pages that are now to be described contain two buffers (input and output). These buffers are used for either passing along or processing messages.

The size of each of these buffers should at least be equal to that of a message, i.e., 8095 bits. We have chosen a buffer size of 253 words (8096 bits) so that both of the buffers are included within one page (512 words). The 6 remaining words of the page are generally used for control. A typical buffer page structure is identified on figure 8.

(a) I/O communication page

See figure 9.

This I/O communication page is used as an interface between the Handler and the Network program.

In the buffers of this page the messages are assembled (input) or de-assembled (output) word by word by the Handler, e.g., a "ready to go" message, sorted by the Network program in the output buffer, is shipped out word by word by the Handler.

Main characteristics:

* Location: Resident in core: Locked page

* Coupling: Coupled to the Network process virtual space

Content: * Input buffer (253 words) for incoming messages
 Output buffer (253 words) for outgoing messages
 * Input control zone (6 half words)

* Output control zone (6 half words)

* Structure: See figure 9.

* Specific feature: * The input buffer is filled by the Handler

(read from hardware) and emptied by the . Network program

* Vice versa for the output buffer

(b) Connection shared naves (User Network shared zone)

General features:

* There are as many shared pages as connections.

These pages shared between the network and the user processes constitute a communication zone for (1) passing the messages back and forth, and (2) exchanging control information, e.g., a request for establishing new connections.

Main characteristics:

Location: Disc resident

Coupling: Coupled to both a user process virtual space and the network process virtual space.

* Content: - Input buffer (253 words) for incoming messages

- Output buffer (253 words) for outgoing messages
- Input control zone (6 half words)
- Output control zone (6 half words)
- Structure: See figure 10.
- Specific feature 1: The input buffer is filled by the Network

and emptied by the user.

- Vice versa for the output buffer.

Specific feature 2: The control zone corresponding to a primary connection shared page differs from that of an auxiliary connection. This because it is via a "primary connection control zone" that auxiliary connection establishment requests are transmitted to the Network process.

(c) Working page

General feature:

* This page allows the Network and the Handler programs to work

independently on different messages and so contributes to an overlapping. For instance, when the Handler is busy transmitting a message to the hardware, the Network program can format (leader, marking, etc.) the reset message to be shipped out, so that it can reinitiate the Handler as soon as it is free.

Main characteristics:

* Location: Disc resident

* Coupling: Coupled to the Metwork process virtual space

* Content: - Input buffer (253 words) for incoming messages

- Output buffer (253 words) for outgoing messages

Remark:

During reception it may happen that a user program is not ready to accept a new message. In that case, to avoid clogging up the system, the Network stores momentarily the incoming message in one of the buffer of the emergency ring. (If this ring is full a help routine will be invoked.)

During emission all operations are synchronized with the RFM_s , therefore such procedures need not be provided. (The Network program allows a user to re-emit only when having received the REAM of the previous transmitted message.)

1 word (32 bis) finiand Zone for controlling 6 words impart and output operations Input buffer (incoming manife) 253 Wards 25 Output Luffer (antipution metage) Lesis Martin

Typesi buille forza

33 .

1 Wor! (32 1.5) Network 126 -Input pointer (current dete of input buffie) 6 Windo Output printer (agrent date of withit buffer) Menson, Longth (moning) Menogi Lucyth (outgoing) 253 Juis Jupit haffe Output buffer 253 worth Word o structure: 7 Dialoque = "Thruncey" bit x' Sa 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 = "Thrusend" bit = "OK rear" bit : "OK send" bit I with Network for x' 00005005' > Dialogue X' 1000 0000' x' 0000 1000' handware I/o commication page structure (Locket Jose) Figur: 9. 34

1 Work (32 615) User it (106/pooles #), only if prenally constitue Internet menor: Rength (Byte 1) outgoing mersily length (Byte #) 253 which (24) Infort buffer 253 Jacob Outgoing builler (RR) In fact the war should not use Word a structure the 253 words (Room is needed for body, marking, itc) (i) Ansalizary commission User-Net bit < Net - Vier at e O Nelwork needy memory connection is established (the Whether Karry but +--user can transmit, or last transmission has been orknowlidged by the IMP: BFNM received. (ii) Rimany connection Identical to Request type, au riliary connections (Open/live anothing connection -> # of 1000, i.e., # of autoring constituent open / 2022 . Connection allocat for structures Figure 10
3.3.2 Programs

3.3.2.1 Handler program

General features:

It is an I/O interrupt routine which drives the IMP/HOST hardware interface in order to transmit or receive messages. Transmission and reception are carried out in a full duplex mode.

Main characteristics:

- * Location: Core resident. The Handler is in the same memory zone as the operating system and can be considered as part of it.
- * Initiation: By the IMP-HOSF hardware interrupt. This interrupt is triggered either:
 - * during transmission when a message word is completely sent to the IMP
 - * during reception when a message word has been completely received from the IMP
- # during idle time when the hardware received either a 'start input' or 'start output' order from the Sigma 7 CPU. Those orders are issued by the Network program for provoking interrupts back (consequently for indirectly initiating the Handler). # Main functions: # Empties the output buffer upon transmitting

its content (outgoing message to the IMP. This operation is carried out word by word (32 bits) and makes use of "Write" orders for

driving the HOST-IMP hardware.

Fills the input buffer with data received from HOST-IMP hardware (incoming message). This operation is also carried out word by word and makes use of "Read" orders for driving the HOST-IMP hardware.

* Wakes up the Network program when any of the previous operations is complete.

3.3.2.2 Network program

General features:

This program serves the user for opening/closing connections and transmitting/receiving messages. It uses the Handler as an aid for interfacing with the hardware.

For the GORDO point of view it is a regular process and treated as such.

Main characteristics:

* Location: Disc resident. More precisely it is on disc when asleep and called in core when awakened by a program.

* Initiation: It is initiated through 'WAKE' service calls issued . either by a user process or by the Handler.

* Main functions: * Establishes/deletes outgoing connections upon users' requests. For so doing it sends control messages (see 2.4.2) to remote HOST_s in order to get links established/released; it then notifies back the users.

> * Insures the processing of incoming control messages (transmitted over control links), e.g.,

for contributing to establishments/deletions of connections (those requested by remote HOSTS).

* Prepares transmission of outgoing messages. It picks up text messages from shared pages (the messages are stored there by users), formats them (adds leader, marking, checksum..), and passes them along to the Handler for transmission.

* Insures delivery of incoming messages. It is the opposite of the above operation. The users to which the messages should be delivered are identified through the leaders.

* Virtual space configuration: See figure 11.

* Specific feature: It is integrated as an I/O process, so that it can access privileged instruction (RD/MD for indirectly initiating the Handler).

Escentable code. Albeating tables (HOST, COMMERCE, MENT, WIR) Shared, facked page with the Handling Communication hagin lages for mensage formattery Working fall + Emergency ning. ~ werk Shared page with users Connection (1 poze / connection) sharil fraction GORDO resultat system Sof 30 Con 30 Medwork protoco potocodo :::---Franks H

3.4 Software Procedures

The detailed software procedures are given on the flowcharts attached with Appendix A. However, to get a quick understanding of the implementation we list below some typical software procedures.

3.4.1 Description of some typical sequences

Consider some of the transactions at user's disposal (See 2.4) and point out the basic software procedures they imply. For each case we will delineate (i) what the user program does and (ii) what the Network program does.

(a) Open a primary link (See also 2.4.2)

(i) What the user program does [1]:

* it stores in the Network mail box directory the name of a file, e.g., DATA;

* it couples the first page of this file to its virtual space;

* it stores information in this page (its job / process #, the remote HOST #, e.g., (i));

* it wakes up the Network process;

* it goes to sleep.

(ii) What the Network program does:

* it explores the Network mail box directory and accesses the file DATA;

- it couples the first page of this file to its virtual space (Shared Zone, see 3.3.1.2). Suppose this paget be the k^{th} in the shared zone; k is the internal connection #;
- it explores the ith slot of thw HOST table (See 3.3.1.1 (a)) and selects the first bit = 0, e.g., the α th bit; α corresponds to the outgoing link #;
- it stores information (job/process #, remote HOST # (i), outgoing link # (α)) in the kth slot of the CONNECT table
 (See 3.3.1.2).

it momentarily stores the connection # (k) in the INPUT LINK table. This is carried out upon creating an entry in this table (Hashing the key value: "outgoing link # (α) + remote HOST # (i) + outgoing flag".);

- * it prepares the message text ENQ PRIM 0 0 α and formats a complete message in adding leader, marking, checksum, etc.;
 - it checks the Handler state (bit in I/O locked page). If the Handler is free, it stores the 'ready to go' control message in the output buffer of the I/O locked page, initiates the Handler, and goes to sleep. Else it goes to sleep.

After a while the Handler wakes up the Network process because it has received a complete message. We suppose this message be the control message sent by the remote HOST for acknowledging the establishment of the connection. The message text should be:

ACK ENQ PRIM 0 0 α 0 0 β where β is the incoming link #. (Sec 2.4.2)

Let's see now what the Network program does when receiving the above control message:

- # it retrieves the connection # previously stored in the INPUP LINK table upon re-hashing the same key value (See above). Also it deletes this entry;
- * it creates an entry in the INPUF LINK table for the incoming link. For so doing it hashes the key value: "incoming link # (β) + remote HOST # (i) + incoming flag". In this entry it stores the HOST # (i), the incoming link # (β), and connection # (k);
- * it updates the kth slot of the CONNECT table in storing the incoming link # (β);
- it turns on the 'net-user' bit in kth shared page (page corresponding to the primary connection that has just been opened) and wakes up the user process;
- * it goes to sleep.

(b) Transmit a message over primary link

- (i) What the user program does [1].
 - * it stores the message text in the output buffer of the primary connection shared page (See 3.3.1.2);
 - * it turns on the 'user-net' bit of this page and wakes up the Network process;
 - * it goes to sleep.

- What the Network program does: (ii)
 - * it looks for user request, i.e., it explores in sequence the connection shared pages and selects the one that has its user-Suppose k be the selected page # on the net' bit turned on. shared list, K is the connection #;
 - it determines the request type in testing the "request bits' of the shared page k. It finds out that it is a request for transmitting a message.
 - it takes the message text from the output buffer of the shared page k, formats it into a complete message and transmits to the Handler in a very similar way as above (See Open a primary link).
 - it goes to sleep.

[1] Remark: In a first phase the user will directly write the network functions in his program. Later on subroutines will be put at user's disposal. These subroutines will be very close to those described in 2.4.

APPENDIX A

Flowcharts





Metwork (più) NEW USER Constate a new shared plage . Take the first page (will be primary shound page) of the fit refered to in the Network mail there is completed to the Retweek vistaal space (should list). Assume (12) be of the page if when I an the should populate 1 convertion of Get information stored in this face by the user · Remete HUST # (ii) · Job/ Sucar A · Tapiere it way of HUST laster of whet the first. (2) bit 20 ; outgoing box 11 = (2) U) date CONNECT take · Access he's withing & store: Remote Host ill - Jul Prover # - XW (File id), Boje # in [de (=1) - Outgoing link of (a) Protect COMMENT of Store manifically the encoding of the in the MENT LIMM follow For long of amounty to contect output harding the boy rolling a Configure (1) + The second rule of the first the

Prepare minage " ENQ PRIM 9 Gell PREPMESS subjective (\mathbf{D}) HAUSLER bury sending? . Test "Thru send" bit is 5/1 communication forge 'n∽ Rumite MANDLER , Call mile. FEED WAREUS 2 (pi) BREEMESS submitting formats the newspace to be shifted and (Contage marking, checksim, etc.) (\cdot)

Network (p 41) PROCRECY Delinsole marsadis tract (Break down leader, marking, ...) (Frim leader) SEIDA Standard RENM Ence checking ox? (p 5i) 5 Special fra show Between Connection # (1) , Select interming link of (3) and remote HOST of (1) from Leaves Get an entry on input-zink table (Mash: "(p)+ 21+ incoming flag") then this entry, pick up the connection # (1) message Link # (from lender) = control link # ? 15 CONTIN (r 5 i) Applate connection should boye (1) . Store tommany in influet bugger Stari byle of (Henry Carelly) Turn on Het-Using bit Wally up user proton . The Election of and in conditer follow

Minina (psi)



Hilwark (poi) CONTRASE Paroa The first test character of the memory TMINE TENS TFOT (X) This sections TACK (Anotonia (1913) and the familie They are similar le Thek TACK 2nd tent crosset = ENQ? حظم Actnowlyness for link establishment Saleyt remote HEST # 10 from trader . Could incoming link # (k) from manage that Retrieve connect # (12) . Actors INPUT. Link tales when hashing: (q + (i) + out going the Whether CONNECT taking antray (12) . Turn on " consistion " what is fell" bits Updale infor-Link table · Create an entry upon handing . Store in this entry : Hort 4(1), incoming with \$ (1), convertion \$ (12).

Ale work (p gi) (check RENM bit in connect(A) Update connection shared hoge / fre . Turn on "Net user" & " Watshirk miles" bot Wate up user pours WAKESS 2nd test charact = FOT? (p i)Advise strucht for book dere Schert remote HOST # /il from bar. Islet incaning link # (B) from manyor is enn Delete INPUT LINK Whe carting Hash : (B) + (i) + incomment for a connection of (B), Jans and this entry Doute entry the on connect well Remove connection should have the form Methods without sport. WALLEY

Will marke Homilian (pi) 2 Save resisters Detrimine interviews cause (Read intervery flags (RD)) . Silve seral intracest is well for both read and write operations WRITE (pli) WRITREAL (pil) LAST WAIT (pic) READ Internet following the Read and white transminus of the tot accus althe same READ monoge would Load current input data pointe Read 1 Word (4.5) Lost word of a primary ? (Test (C) Stay the word in impost with Store the word in in put low for Calculate menore broth Increment and store bounds. and store it into inful initial zone . Wake of the Network proteins Restitute menters Bock to operating m (L25'2)

Handred (pic) WRITERFAS RDWEFLNGEL MARTE Load current output data printer and get next word Last word if a mensage? (length has been stored in output cated forc) by the Hetalack pioless White lost used White current word! (VI 2' 14') (wD'94) Increment and store fairies choin with reading ROND FLAGEN? REPD (pi) Restance registro Back to operating system. (1253) LASTWDIT Richard Marian Marke was